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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE
EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA
Norfolk Division

—

SHAWN FAHEY,
Plaintiff
V. _— Civil Case No.

NORFOLK STATE UNIVERSITY,

BOARD OF VISITORS OF
NORFOLK STATE UNIVERSITY, JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

and

FICTITIOUS PERSONS A-Z.,
Defendants.

A

COMPLAINT

COMES NOW Plaintiff Shawn Fahey (‘“Plaintiff” or “Fahey”), by counsel, and moves this
Honorable Court for Judgment against the Defendants Norfolk State University; Board of Visitors
of Norfolk State University; and Fictitious Persons A-Z; and in support of his complaint, states as

follows, to-wit:

L INTRODUCTION

1. This suit is being brought pursuant to Title IX of the Education Amendments of
1972 (i.e., 20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, et seq.) (“Title IX”).

2. In December 2020, Plaintiff committed to playing football at Norfolk State
University. Plaintiff reported for practice in June 2021. In his brief time as a player, Plaintiff was
hazed by other football players. As part of these hazing rituals, Plaintiff was sexually assaulted
and harassed.

3. Plaintiff reported the incident to his coaches, but no direct reports were made to the

Title IX Coordinator as required by Title IX regulations. The university did not act on Plaintiff’s
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report until his mother emailed Javaune Adams-Gaston, the university’s president. Even then, the
university never advised Plaintiff of any steps that had been taken to protect him.

4. Because Norfolk State University had created a culture — spanning two coaching
staffs — that enabled sexual assault and hazing of younger football players, Plaintiff gave up his
position on the football team, along with his full tuition and housing scholarship, and did not

register for classes — all to protect himself from further sexual assault and hazing.’

IL. JURISDICTION

5. This Court has federal question jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and civil rights
jurisdiction under 28 U.S.C. § 1343.

6. Plaintiff has delivered notice to NSU regarding his state law claims pursuant to the
Virginia Tort Claims Act (“VTCA”), Code of Virginia § 8.01-195.1, et seq. However, neither the
six-month waiting period for the Commonwealth to review these state law claims has elapsed, nor
has the Plaintiff received any notice of his state law claims being denied. Therefore, Plaintiff is
presently unable to pursue these state law claims pursuant to the VTCA as they are not ripe for
adjudication. However, Plaintiff intends to seek leave of the Court to amend this Complaint if he
receives a denial of his claim or when the six-month period elapses. If and when either event

occurs, this Court will have supplemental jurisdiction over these state law tort claims under 28

U.S.C. § 1367.
7. All relief available under the foregoing statutes is sought herein by the Plaintiff.
8. Personal jurisdiction exists over the Defendants as each Defendant has had

sufficient minimum contacts with Virginia and this district because of residence within Virginia.

! See John Doe v. Norfolk State University and Board of Visitors of Norfolk State University filed June 1, 2022.
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Alternatively, personal jurisdiction exists because all claims alleged in this complaint arise from

actions occurring in Virginia and in this district.

I1I. VENUE

0. Venue is proper pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b), because a substantial part of the
acts and omissions giving rise to Plaintiff’s claims occurred in this district.

10. Assignment to the Norfolk Division of the Eastern District of Virginia is proper
pursuant to Eastern District of Virginia Local Rules 3(B)(3) and 3(C) because a substantial part of

the acts and omissions giving rise to Plaintiff’s claims occurred in this division.

IV.  PARTIES

11.  Plaintiff Shawn Fahey is of full age and majority and is a resident of the
Commonwealth of Virginia. At all relevant times, Plaintiff was a student attending Norfolk State
University and a player on the university’s football team.

12.  Defendant Norfolk State University is a public university formed under the laws of
the Commonwealth of Virginia. It is governed by Defendant Board of Visitors of Norfolk State
University, which approves all Title IX policies and procedures for the university. (Collectively,
these Defendants shall be referred to as “NSU.”)

13. Fictitious Persons A-Z are those persons, firms, corporations, or other entities who
are in any way responsible to the Plaintiff for the damages he has sustained and whose identities

are at this time unknown but will be added by appropriate amendments when ascertained.

V. FACTS

14. NSU is a public university located in Norfolk, Virginia, founded in 1935.
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15.  NSU’s football team, the Norfolk State Spartans, participates in NCAA Division 1
as part of the Mid-Eastern Athletic Conference.

16.  From April 2020 to May 2021, Plaintiff was in contact with an NSU Assistant
Football Coach Brandon Torrey. During these months of contact, Coach Torrey tried to provide
incentives for the Plaintiff to attend NSU and play football. For example, Coach Brandon Torrey
gave assurances to Plaintiff’s family that Plaintiff would be provided food and housing at NSU at
no cost as part of his agreement to play football at NSU. Coach Torrey also built a rapport with
Plaintiff by watching Plaintift’s high school football games and making him feel like a part of the
team before arriving at NSU. Coach Torrey referred to Plaintiff as “my guy” and “my man” while
encouraging him to commit to play at NSU.

17. On National Signing Day, (i.e., December 16, 2020), Plaintiff signed his letter of
intent to play football at NSU. See Exhibit 1. Plaintiff turned down two (2) other Division 1
offers, which also included full-ride scholarships.

18.  In June 2021, Plaintiff signed a contract with NSU for a full scholarship to include
tuition, room, board, and books. See Exhibit 2. On June 28, 2021, Plaintiff moved into NSU
dormitories and began practice with the NSU football team.

19.  While Plaintiff was trying to acclimate himself to college as a member of the NSU
football team, he suffered sexual harassment and sexual assault in the form of fondling and groping
by the same teammates that NSU had expected him to trust.

20. NSU had notice of these “grooming” behaviors, which included several
upperclassmen football players repeatedly groping, grabbing, and making video calls with their
genitalia exposed to younger players on the team. However, NSU swept these allegations under

the proverbial rug.
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21.  Upon information and belief, NSU’s current and past football coaches have
witnessed NSU football players grabbing the crotches of other players, but they failed to report
this behavior to the Title IX Coordinator. Over the years, this behavior has become normalized
among the team and has been referred to by another coach as being “playful.” This coach further
stated, “We just never took [it] seriously.”

22.  Based on information reported by a witness, the prior head coach, Latrell Scott,
knew of the hazing and sexual harassment that was taking place at NSU. According to this witness,
Coach Scott repeatedly told NSU football players not to engage in this type of sexual harassment
behavior. Nevertheless, these requests —not being followed up with stern discipline or the requisite
Title IX investigations — fell on deaf ears.

23. Incoming freshman players would soon learn that upperclassmen would perpetrate
acts of hazing in the form of fondling, groping, and voyeurism. If an NSU football player was
ever told to “size up,” it was understood that he was to drop his pants and expose his penis to the
other player, whereupon the two players would compare penis sizes. Plaintiff was also aware of
FaceTime video calls with at least one NSU upperclassmen football player exposing his genitalia
to other NSU football players. One video recording shows an NSU football player holding down
a freshman NSU football player and “dry humping” him from behind while others looked on and
laughed.

24. On or about July 2, 2021, Plaintiff attended a party with other NSU football players.
At this party, Plaintiff was followed into the bathroom by D.S., an NSU upperclassman football
player. D.S. proceeded to stand behind Plaintiff while Plaintiff was urinating, staring at Plaintiff’s
penis. D.S. followed Plaintiff out of the bathroom shouting “puny, puny, puny,” referring to

Plaintiff’s genitalia.
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25. The following week, on or about July 6, 2021, D. S. grabbed Plaintift’s penis while
in the stairwell of the dormitories. Plaintiff immediately pushed D.S. away and told D.S. to stop.

26. The next day (i.e., July 7, 2021), J.P., who is another NSU upperclassman football
player, grabbed Plaintiff’s buttocks during football practice and inserted his thumb into the
Plaintiff’s intergluteal cleft. Other players on the field who witnessed this behavior commented
that J.P. had “fingered” Plaintiff. Later that day, Plaintiff notified Coach Torrey that he would not
return to practice the next day.

27. On July 8, 2021, Plaintiff sent an email to NSU Head Football Coach Dawson
Odums to report the sexual assaults. In his email, Plaintiff indicates “he is nervous to get the other
guys in trouble.” Plaintiff also states that he told both D.S. and J.P. to stop touching him and
because, “I don’t mess with that kind of stuff.” However, neither Coach Odums nor Coach Torrey
reported any of these incidents to the Title IX Coordinator, Mr. James Robinson.

28. On July 9, 2021, Plaintiff’s mother, distraught over the sexual assaults that were
perpetrated on her son, sent an email to Javaune Adams-Gaston, president of NSU. It was not until
after Plaintiff’s mother had contacted President Adams-Gaston that Mr. Robinson contacted the
Plaintiff regarding the reported sexual assault. At the time of the report, written notice was not
sent out to the parties involved to indicate the allegations.

29. On July 12, 2021, Plaintiff met with Title IX investigator to file a report. During
this meeting no interim measures were put in place to ensure Plaintiff had continued access to
education and could continue to play football at NSU. Rather, Plaintiff was told that they would

put in a good word for him if he wanted to transfer to another university.
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30. On July 13-14, 2021, witness and respondent interviews were conducted. A notice
of investigation and allegations was not sent to the respondents before the interviews were
conducted. To date, no preliminary investigation report has been provided as of today’s date.

31. On July 15, 2021, Mr. Robinson emailed Coach Odums indicating that no-contact
orders had been issued to D.S. and J.P. Mr. Robinson encouraged Coach Odums to “inform the
team as well.” However, no one informed the Plaintiff about the no-contact order.

32. On August 10, 2021, a summary of witness interviews was provided to counsel for
the Plaintiff. Neither Plaintiff, nor his advisor, received any more communications from the Title
IX coordinator until March 2022. As of the date of this filing, there has been no final investigation
report submitted and there has been no hearing with cross-examination conducted as required by
the August 2020 Title IX Final Rule. Thus, neither the Plaintiff nor his advisor was able to examine
the respondents.

33.  In addition to receiving a milquetoast reaction from the Title IX office, Plaintiff
also suffered retaliation from his peers. He was called “homophobic” by other NSU
upperclassmen football players for telling D.S. and J.P. that (1) he did not want to be touched and
that (2) it is “not ok™ to stare at Plaintiff’s penis while he is urinating.

34.  Due to the persistent harassment and the culture of deliberate indifference by NSU
and its coaches, Plaintiff chose to protect himself from further sexual assault and hostility by giving
up his dream of playing college football and receiving a bachelor’s degree from NSU. Thus, he
did not register for classes on August 27-28, 2021, during the departmental advising and
registration period. Likewise, when classes started on August 30, 2021, he was not present on
campus. In the 274 days that have elapsed since the start of Fall classes at NSU, Plaintiff has been

in a state of educational limbo.
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VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

VIOLATION OF TITLE IX OF THE EDUCATION AMENDMENTS OF 1972: HOSTILE
EDUCATION ENVIRONMENT AND DELIBERATE INDIFFERENCE

35.  Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in the
entirety of this Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

36.  NSU is responsible for the acts and omissions of an employee when the employee
is acting within the scope of their employment and on behalf of their employer. At all times
relevant, NSU employees named in this complaint were acting in the course and scope of their
authority at NSU and on behalf of NSU. Thus, NSU is responsible for their acts or omissions.

37.  Atall relevant times, NSU was receiving federal funding as contemplated by Title
IX. Therefore, Title IX abrogates NSU’s Eleventh Amendment sovereign immunity. See Franklin
v. Gwinnett County Public Schools, 503 U.S. 60, 71-73 (1992); see also Gebser v. Lago Vista
Independent School Dist., 524 U.S. 274, 287-90 (1998).

38. Title IX states that “[n]o person in the United States shall, on the basis of sex, be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefit of, or be subjected to discrimination under
any education program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.”

39.  According to the U.S. Department of Education’s 2020 published rule on Title IX,
all schools receiving federal financial assistance must respond to

. allegations of sexual harassment consistent with Title IX’s prohibition against sex
discrimination. These regulations are intended to effectuate Title IX’s prohibition against
sex discrimination by requiring recipients to address sexual harassment as a form of sex
discrimination in education programs or activities. The final regulations obligate recipients
to respond promptly and supportively to persons alleged to be victimized by sexual

harassment, resolve allegations of sexual harassment promptly and accurately under a

predictable, fair grievance process that provides due process protections to alleged victims

and alleged perpetrators of sexual harassment, and effectively implement remedies for
victims.

85 FR 30026 (effective August 14, 2020).
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40. Under the Title IX final rule issued by the U.S. Department of Education, a school
is deliberately indifferent if the response is not reasonable in light of the known circumstances.
To this end, a school’s Title IX Coordinator is required to promptly contact the complainant,
provide supportive measures, and explain the process of filing a formal complaint.

41. NSU Title IX policy states, “Every NSU employee who is informed about an
allegation of sexual misconduct involving any student, staff, or faculty member, is required to
notify the Title IX Coordinator, or his or her designee either directly or through an appropriate
reporting mechanism such as email or by phone.”

42.  NSU’s Title IX policy also states, “[C]ertain NSU employees, called ‘Responsible
Employees’ are required to report to the Title IX Coordinator all information disclosed to them
about an incident of Prohibited Conduct.” At all material times, Head Coaches Scott and Odums
and assistant coaches were “Responsible Employees” under the NSU Title IX policy.

43.  NSU has a policy to address hazing that is provided to the students at the beginning
of the spring and fall semesters. The policy is also published in the student handbook and
distributed to the University community. The policy defines /azing as “any action or situation,
whether on or off University premises, that is harmful or potentially harmful to an individual’s
physical, emotional, academic or psychological well-being, regardless of an individual’s
willingness to participate or its bearing on his/her membership status.” The NSU hazing policy
requires all University employees and students to report all “real and suspected acts of hazing to
the NSU Police Department” and prohibits retaliation for reporting. In addition, the REACH Act
requires institutions of higher education (IHESs) that participate in federal student-aid programs to

report hazing incidents and implement hazing education programs. Specifically, the Act requires
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each IHE to disclose hazing incidents that were reported to campus officials in its annual security
report.

44.  NSU is responsible for ensuring all responsible employees and athletic department
staff are properly trained in Title IX and are supervised in performing their jobs (see 34 C.F.R. §
106.45 (b)(1)(iii)). Coach Odums and Coach Torrey had not completed Title IX training between
the months of June 1, 2021 to November 1, 2021. Coach Odums completed the training for campus
security authorities (CSA) on November 1, 2021, well after the start of the football season and
well after these sexual assaults had taken place.

45. The Title IX regulations require:

. reasonably prompt time frames for conclusion of the grievance process, including
reasonably prompt time frames for filing and resolving appeals and informal resolution
processes if the recipient offers informal resolution processes, and a process that allows for
the temporary delay of the grievance process or the limited extension of time frames for
good cause with written notice to the complainant and the respondent of the delay or
extension and the reasons for the action.

34 C.FR. § 106.45(b)(1)(v). Furthermore, at postsecondary institutions,

... the recipient's grievance process must provide for a live hearing. At the live hearing,

the decision-maker(s) must permit each party's advisor to ask the other party and any

witnesses all relevant questions and follow-up questions, including those challenging
credibility. Such cross-examination at the live hearing must be conducted directly, orally,
and in real time by the party's advisor of choice and never by a party personally....

34 C.FR. § 106.45(b)(6)(ii).

46.  NSU had actual notice of the sexual assault against the Plaintiff when it was
reported on or about July 8,2021. However, NSU did not follow the proper procedures in reporting
or providing interim measures for the Plaintiff.

47. On July 8, 2021, the Plaintiff reported to Coaches Torrey and Odums the sexual

assaults and hazing. Neither Coach Torrey nor Coach Odums reported the sexual assault to Mr.

Robinson or the hazing to the NSU police as required by NSU’s policy. Instead, Coaches Torrey
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and Odums decided to discuss it with the NSU football team in hopes of addressing the sexual
assault and hazing without notifying the Title IX office. Thus, they continued to demonstrate
deliberate indifference by attempting to hide the culture of sexual assault and sexual harassment
that had been rampant among the NSU football team for years.

48.  NSU'’s investigation and response to the Plaintiff’s sexual assault complaints were
insufficient. NSU’s response did not comply with basic due process requirements or accepted Title
IX response requirements as outlined in guidance from the U.S. Department of Education, Office
for Civil Rights. Plaintiff was not contacted regarding a formal investigation process or interview
until March 2022, well after he had stopped attending NSU. As a result of the deficiencies in the
Title IX process at NSU, there was not a live hearing with cross-examination as required under the
August 14, 2020, Department of Education’s Title IX final rule.

49.  NSU failed to follow its own policies in responding to or investigating complaints
of sexual assault, which include specific deadlines on providing notification to the parties involved,
time frames of the investigation, details on how interviews will be conducted, and the final reports
and recommended findings to be provided to the parties in the investigation. This created a hostile
educational environment for the Plaintiff, thereby necessitating his withdrawal from the NSU
football team and from the university, itself, for his own well-being.

50.  Had NSU provided meaningful follow-up to his complaint and notified him of the
same in a timely manner, Plaintiff would not have left school. He would have remained on the
football team, registered for classes on August 27-28, 2021, and attended classes on August 30,
2021. However, because NSU was deliberately indifferent to his complaint, Plaintiff was left with
no realistic means of protecting himself from the sexual abuse and ridicule of his teammates other

than leaving the situation. Therefore, because the physical nature of the assaults was so severe and
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pervasive, and because he had received insufficient feedback from the NSU Title IX office,
Plaintiff withdrew from the football team in July 2021 and did not register for classes in August
2021. Thus, Plaintiff was denied the ability to participate in his education as a direct and proximate
result of Defendants’ actions and/or inactions. Ergo, Defendants violations of Title IX continued
until at least August 30, 2021.

51.  NSU had an obligation to address Plaintiff’s report of sexual assault against D.S.
and J.P. and remedy any resulting hostile environment created for Plaintiff on campus because of
the sexual assault, such as retaliation from other teammates, as it constituted severe and objectively
offensive sexual harassment, which is a form of prohibited sex-based discrimination under Title
IX. NSU also had an obligation to address Plaintiff’s report of sexual assault against D.S. and J.P.
because that sexual assault was part of a pervasive pattern of sexual harassment that NSU had
actual knowledge was occurring routinely by the football team.

52. At all material times, NSU exercised substantial control over D.S. and J.P. because
they were NSU football players who could have been removed from the team for rules infractions.
After receiving actual notice of the on-campus sexual assault, NSU had an obligation to provide
Plaintiff with prompt and equitable interim remedies to ensure his ongoing access to a safe campus
free from a hostile environment. NSU also had an obligation to ensure his continued access to
education programs and activities through the provision of reasonable academic, housing, and
other available accommodations.

53.  Despite its obligations to Plaintiff, NSU showed deliberate indifference to the
sexual assault of Plaintiff by failing to provide him with prompt and equitable interim remedies
and safety measures. To the extent that they may have provided no-contact orders, these were not

reported to Plaintiff, making them of no practical effect. Plaintiff still believed that D.S. and J.P
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would be able to harass him. Beyond this, Plaintiff understood that other players, mindful of what
had transpired, would continue to ridicule him for even reporting D.S. and J.P, thereby creating a
hostile environment. Thus, by its actions and omissions, NSU effectively denied and/or limited
Plaintiff’s ability to participate in or to receive benefits, services, or opportunities from NSU’s
educational programs or activities.

54.  NSU failed to take Plaintiff’s complaint of sexual assault seriously. NSU coaches
did not report the same to the Title IX office immediately. Then, when the Title IX office learned
by way of Plaintiff’s mother’s email to NSU’s president, the Title IX office slow walked the
investigation. In the meantime, NSU failed to protect other male members of the NSU football
team, which directly led to further sexual harassment, sexual assault, and sex discrimination on
campus.? Thus, NSU’s actions and inactions created and/or contributed to the ongoing hostile
educational environment that Plaintiff suffered, and others have continued to suffer.

55. The university had actual knowledge of sex discrimination including sexual
harassment and sexual assault occurring by members of the NSU football team and acted with
deliberate indifference towards the rights of Plaintiff to a safe education environment. NSU had
actual knowledge as evidenced by the passing of this problem from on Head Coach to another
Head Coach. This deliberate indifference impaired Plaintiff’s ability to participate in and benefit
from educational programs and activities at NSU.

56. NSU did not promptly conclude the investigation with a finding and did not take
proactive steps to prevent its recurrence or remedy its effects. NSU knew of the sexual harassment
and did not take appropriate steps to ensure Plaintiff could continue to benefit from the school’s

programs. If NSU had not been deliberately indifferent to the reported sexual assault and had not

2 A month after Plaintiff’s reported sexual assault, another NSU football player was sexually assaulted.
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taken self-serving action to protect its own interests, Plaintiff would have retained his scholarship,
exercised his opportunity to play football, and pursued his education at NSU.

57.  NSU had knowledge of this pervasive culture of sexual harassment on the football
team and acted with utter disregard in investigating and preventing further harassment to the
Plaintiff. The Defendants’ acts, omissions, policies, and customs resulted in sexual harassment
that was so severe and pervasive it denied Plaintiff the right to participate as both a student and an
athlete at NSU. Thus, Plaintiff was denied equal educational opportunities in violation of Title IX
of the Education Amendments of 1972 (“Title IX”), 20 U.S.C. § 1681(a).

58. Plaintiff suffered financial loss from being denied equal educational opportunities
in violation of Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (“Title IX”), 20 U.S.C. § 1681(a).
Plaintiff suffered the loss of his full scholarship to NSU, loss of room and board, loss of educational
opportunity, loss of future income, and loss of income as derived from his name, image, and
likeness as allowed by the NCAA.

59. As a result of NSU’s deliberate indifference and hostile education environment
Plaintift was forced to withdraw from NSU and the football team and has suffered pecuniary and

non-pecuniary damages in the amounts to be adduced at trial.

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff demands that all issues of fact of this case be tried to a properly impaneled jury to

the extent permitted under the law.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff seeks a judgment against Defendants as follows:
(a) That the Court declare that Defendant’s actions, policies, and practices complained

of herein violated Plaintiff’s rights under Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972;
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(b) Injunctive relief requiring NSU to redress its violations of Title IX, including (1)
instituting, with the assistance of outside experts, and enforcing a comprehensive sexual
harassment and hazing policy, including procedures for effective reporting of sexual harassment
and hazing incidents, an effective and immediate crisis response, and an expended victim
assistance and protection program; (2) adopting a “zero tolerance policy” under which there will
be expedited proceedings and punishment proportional to the offense for violation of sexual
harassment and hazing policies; and (3) providing for an annual, independent review by the Office
of the President, with the participation of outside reviewers, of Athletic Department compliance
with the sexual harassment and sexual hazing policies;

(¢) Anaward of damages against NSU in an amount to be established at trial, including,
without limitation, payment of Plaintiff’s full scholarship and tuition to NSU to include room and
board; payment of Plaintiff’s expenses incurred as a consequence of the sexual assaults; damages
for deprivation of equal access to the educational benefits and opportunities provided by NSU;
damages for loss of future income; damages for loss of income as derived from Plaintiff’s name,
image, and likeness as allowed by the NCAA; and damages for past, present, and future emotional
and psychological harm (where allowed by law);

(d) An award of pre- and post-judgment interest;

(e) An award of cost and attorney fees, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988(b); and

(f)  Such other relief as is just and equitable.

Respectfully Submitted,
/s/

Diane P. Toscano, Esq.

Virginia Bar No. 73478

TOSCANO LAW GROUP, P.C.
1244 Perimeter Parkway, Suite 443
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Virginia Beach, Virginia 23454
Tel:  (757) 821-7972

Fax: (757)903-0186
Diane@toscanolawgroup.com
Attorney for Plaintiff Shawn Fahey
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310 Airplane D 365 Personal Injury -
3|5 Airplane Product Product Liability

Liability [:I 367 Health Care/
320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical
Slander Personal Injury
330 Federal Employers’ Product Liability
Liability 368 Asbestos Personal

340 Marine

345 Marine Product
Lrability

350 Motor Vehicle

355 Motor Vehicle
Product Liability

360 Other Personal
Injury

362 Personal Injury -

Medical Malpractice

Injury Product
Liability

370 Other Fraud

B 371 Truth in Lending

D 380 Other Personal
Property Damage

|:| 385 Property Damage

Product Liability

E
5
5
g
mE

PERSONAL PROPERTY

| 1625 Drug Related Seizure
of Property 21 USC 881
[ ]690 Other

H

422 Appeal 28 USC 158
423 Withdrawal
28 USC 157

INTELLECTUAL
PROPERTY RIGHTS

n

-

LABOR

710 Fair Labor Standards
Act
[ 1720 Labor/Management
Relations
740 Railway Labor Act
751 Family and Medical
Leave Act

REAL PROPERTY

CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PETITIONS

790 Other Labor Litigation

.

[_]210 Land Condemnation
:] 220 Foreclosure
230 Rent Lease & Ejectment

240 Torts to Land

245 Tort Produet Liability
:] 290 All Other Real Property

440 Other Civil Rights

441 Voting

442 Employment

443 Housing/
Accommodations

:‘ 445 Amer. w/Disabilities -

Habeas Corpus:
H 463 Alien Detainee

510 Motions to Vacate
Sentence

530 General

535 Death Penalty

Employment Other:
:l 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - 540 Mandamus & Other
Other 550 Civil Rights

555 Prison Condition

560 Civil Detainee -
Conditions of
Confinement

El 448 Education

791 Employee Retirement
Income Security Act

820 Copyrights

830 Patent

835 Patent - Abbreviated
New Drug Application

840 Trademark

880 Defend Trade Secrets
Act of 2016

SOCIAL SECURITY

[

FEDERAL TAX SUITS

861 HIA (1395ff)

862 Black Lung (923)

863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g))
864 SSID Title XVI

865 RSI (405(g))

LI L LI

I

(]
(]

IMMIGRATION

462 Naturalization Application
465 Other Immigration
Actions

870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff’
or Defendant)

871 IRS—Third Party
26 USC 7609

n

[ ] 950 Constitutionality of

375 False Claims Act

376 Qui Tam (31 USC
3729(a))

400 State Reapportionment

410 Antitrust

430 Banks and Banking

450 Commerce

460 Deportation

470 Racketeer Influenced and
Corrupt Organizations

480 Consumer Credit
(15 USC 1681 or 1692)

485 Telephone Consumer
Protection Act

490 Cable/Sat TV

850 Securities/Commodities/
Exchange

890 Other Statutory Actions

891 Agricultural Acts

893 Environmental Matters

895 Freedom of Information
Act

896 Arbitration

899 Admunistrative Procedure
Act/Review or Appeal of
Agency Decision

State Statutes

. ORIGIN (Place an "X
I Original
Proceeding

in One Box Only)
DZ Removed from
State Court

Remanded from
Appellate Court

DS

Reopened

Dd Reinstated or ] 5 Transferred from
Another District

(specify)

] 6 Multidistrict
Litigation -
Transfer

| 8§ Multidistrict
Litigation -
Direct File

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):
Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 (i.e., 20 U.S.C. §§1681, et seq.) ("Title IX")

Brief description of cause:

Sexual assault involving Norfolk State University Football Team

Vil

REQUESTED IN
COMPLAINT:

[] CHECK IF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION
UNDER RULE 23, F.R.Cv.P.

DEMAND §
TBD By Jury

CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:

JURY DEMAND:

Xves [INo

VIII. RELATED CASE(S)

IF ANY

(See instructions):

JUDGE

DOCKET NUMBER

DATE
June 1, 2022

SIGN/ \TW[ T

ORNEY OF RECORD

N22.C g*/‘ru:\

FOR OFFICE

USE ONLY

RECEIPT #

AMOUNT

APPLYING [FP

JUDGE

MAG. JUDGE
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l l NaTioNAL LETTER o INTENT
P ST . 2021-2022
& FAHEY SHAWN
Name of Prospective Student-Athlete = L T
Permanent Address VIRGINIA BEACH VA 23454 us
City State Postal Code Country
Prospective Student-Athlete’s NCAA 1D 2012975270 Date of Birth

(must be registered with the NCAA Eligibility Center and on the Institutional Request List)

Submission of this NI has been authorized by:

SIGNED 12/16/2020
Director of Athlctics (or designee) Date Tssued to Prospective Student-Athlete

For Institutional Use Only:
Two-year college transfer D

FOOTBALL Two-year college expected graduation date
Sport (if required to graduatc)
This is to certify my decision to enroll at Norfolk State University

Name of Institution

I certify that I have read all terms and conditions included in this document. T have discussed them with the coach and/or other staff
representatives of the institution named above, and I fully understand, accept and agree to be bound by them. I understand that signing this
NLI is voluntary and I am not required to sign the NLI to receive athletics aid and participate in intercollegiate athletics. Additionally, I give
my consent to the signing institution, fo disclose to authorized representatives of its athletics conference, the NCAA and the NLI Office any
documents or information pertaining to my NLI signing. Further, I give my consent to the NLI Office to disclose my name and personally
identifiable information from my education records fo a third party (including but not limited to the media) as necessary to correct any
inaccuracies reported by the media or related to my NLI signing, without such disclosure constituting a violation of my rights, including my
rights under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.

If I falsify any part of this NLI, or if I have knowledge that my parent or legal guardian falsified any part of this NLI, I understand I shall
forfeit the first year of my athletics competition at any NLI member institution.

My signature on this NLI nn"iﬁ%rcements, oral or otherwise, which would release me from the conditions stated within this NLL

SIGNED ))& /80 ENlaA

Pyﬂtﬁc Student-Athlete Signatre—" Signing Date (Mth/Day/Yr) Time (Designate - AM./P.M.)
Do not sign prior to 7:00 a.m.
Parent//egal guardian sigpfiture nequired if prospective student-athlete (local time) on the initial
ifthday. signing date.

12| le[ 2020 0754 Ay

. Signing Date (Mth/D i 2
(Check one) me’cm orDLcé,al Guardian Siglurc s ) 11;‘:‘:052;'5::?:0 7A‘ol(\)4.a/‘r)n.M)
(local time) on the initial
v Signing date.

Yicia Yohay | R
Print Name of Patent/Legal Guardian Telephone Number (including area code) Email Address

T

it @ National Letter of Intent S —.

Rev. 10/01/2020




Case 2:22-cv-00228-AWA-DEM Document 1-3 Filed 06/01/22 Page 1 of 1 PagelD# 19

GRANT-IN-AID CONTRACT

NORFOLK STATE UNIVERSITY
DEPARTMENT OF INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS
700 PARK AVENUE NORFOLK, VA 23504
The Financial Aid office is offering grant-in-aid to the below named individual upon the recommendation of the Department of intercollegiate

Athletics at Norfolk State University. For entering freshmen and 2-year college transfers, this offer is contingent upon admission to NSU and,
certification of eligibility by the NCAA Initial Eligibility Center.

name: Shawn Fahey SSN or Student 1.D #

Address: sport: Football
City/state/zip:\/irginia Beach, VA 23454 Eligibility Center 1.D4_2012975270

(Entering freshmen and 2-year college transfers only)

— g
Period of Award: Indicate Academic Year_2021-2022 ~ OR Semester Only (indicate fall or spring) = & L (

Total Amount of Award: $ 21 ,386 ‘/ In State Out of State V [On-Campus -Campus
Tuition: S 9,622

Room: S 7.326 .

Board: $ 3,638 v Full Scholarship Partial Scholarship

Books: S 800

CONDITIONS THAT WILL RESULT IN AID BEING WITHDRAWN:

1) i ¥m determined to be an academic nonqualifier, and/or my amateurism status is not certified by the NCAA Initial Eligibility Center;

2) I 1 do not meet NCAA transfer requirements for Junior College (2year) or 4-year college transfer students;

3) Igive false information on my application, letter of intent or financial aid agreement;

4)  |engage in serious misconduct that resuits in disciplinary action (University or team);

5) | voluntarily withdraw from my sport;

6) |engage in activities which cause me to forfeit my amateur status (accepting prize money, competing with professionals, signing with or accepting
benefits from agents or other impermissible representatives of athletics interests);

7) Ireceive other aid which exceeds cost of attendance. (In this instance athletics aid will be reduced to accommodate any other outside aid
received...academic scholarships, grants etc.);

8) I’'m denied admission to the University or, at any time (prior to enrollment or while enrolled at NSU) become ineligible for intercollegiate competition.

Your signature below indicates understanding and acceptance of the terms of this contract. Please sign and date all copies and return two (2)

copies back to the Athl Department. Retain one copy for your records. This contract is valid only through the period of the award indicated
above. The grant-in-aid contract may be renewed on an annual basis; however, the amount is not guaranteed from year-to- year. The amount of

aid awarded by the athletics department does not cover any additional fees levied by the University (damage deposits, student activity fees,
medical insurance fees, admissjpn application fees, etc.)

{Head Coach) (Date)
(Athletics Director) (Date)
(Financial Aid Director) (Date) [ Comiinents:

Aid amounts may be adjusted to reflect changes
in cost of attendance. Signee is responsible for
any fees/charges not expressly listed on this
contract. Int. Insurance covered in room amt.

Compliance Approval





